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Questions for RFP #251-25-12 – Trash/Cardboard Removal Services 

Reference Vendor Question Answers 

 Who is the current vendor?  How long? GFL – 10+ years (not exact) 

 30 yard roll off – what are they used for? Construction, purging of schools 

 Do we need to sign pre-bid addendum? Yes, initialed copies of all addendums must be included in your 
bid document package. 

RFP Section 2, Pg 
7: 

Please clarify the proposal due date: April 9, 2024 @ 12:00 
pm,  April 9, 2024 @ 1:00 pm or April 11, 2024 @ 1:00 pm? 
The RFP states these different submission deadlines on 
pages 3 & 7. 

Proposals will be due and publicly opened on April 9, 2024 @ 
1:00pm ET, as shown on the execution page. 
 

 Instead of using All Urban Consumer South. Would you 
consider using CPI-U Water and Sewer and Trash 
Collection Services   

No 

 Please provide the tonnage for both MSW and OCC for the 
last 12 months 

Not available. 

 Please provide a copy of the current contract GFL Contract 2023-2024 

 Please provide current pricing 8YD Trash- $24.16  8YD Cardboard- $8.81  30YD Trash 
Rolloff-$483.71 Per pickup 

 All Service technicians must be licensed by the state of NC 
to perform the task.  Could you please specify the specific 
license that you are looking for?   

Not aware of a requirement for a NC license. 

 It states that you prefer the forms in the RFP be wet signed 
and an original, not digital. (including Prebid sheet?) 

Provide bid submittals as specified in RFP. 

 Proposals will be opened publicly in Building F (Purchasing 
Dept) at address listed.  Can you please provide the 
address.  

Wake County Public School System 
Attn:  Marcella Calvert 
1551 Rock Quarry Road, Bldg. F 
Raleigh, NC  27610 

 Disposing of waste, if all waste is handled in a NC licensed 
facility, state fees are covered and paid.  Would final 
disposal outside the state be considered?  

Provide bid submittals as specified in RFP. 

RFP Section 1 Bi.,  
Pg 5: 

What are historical frequency change needs for year-
round/traditional calendars? Are there substantial amounts 
of decreases across the summer months? Are any 
sites/equipment completely turned off from service at any 
time?  

Frequency changes are dependent on the needs of schools, 
population and building uses change so there is no historical 
information. Yes-for traditional calendar schools.  No. 

RFP Section 1 Bii., 
Pg 5: 

Is there a bell schedule that can be provided so that service 
does not interfere with morning or dismissal of students?  

To be provided as needed to contractor awarded contract.  
Contractor will work out service schedule. 
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What lead time is appropriate- i.e., service not to be 
rendered 30 minutes prior to bell schedules?  

RFP Section 1F., 
Pg 5: 

What is acceptable for regular collections for inclement 
weather, and/or separate from specified holiday schedule? 

Pickup is expected as weather permits. 

RFP Section 2,  
Pg 5: 

Can invoices be sent via mail (hard copy) to WCPSS? If so, 
what is that address?  

Yes. 
Wake County Public School System 
Accounting Department 
111 Corning Road, Suite 250 
Cary, NC  27518 

RFP Section 2,  
Pg 7: 

Contract begins 7/1/2024 and for one year with “optional” 
additional (4) four, (1) one-year periods. With the capital 
investment needed up front, can this be changed to a three 
(3) year with optional (2) two, (1) one-year periods?  

No 

RFP Section Terms 
and Conditions,  
Pg 13, 31: 

Can the “…this contract may be canceled in whole or in 
part by either party by giving 30 days prior notice in writing 
to the other party” be removed? If not removed, can notice 
be adjusted to read 90 days prior notice?  

Our terms and conditions cannot be changed. 

RFP Attachments C 
& D, Pgs. 17 - 26: 

Are there any schools that have regularly scheduled 
Saturday service?  

No 

 On Pricing Page 8, please confirm  that under 1388 Units, 
we should put 1388 times whatever our per dump rate 
would be to equal that weekly total.  For the monthly fee, 
we would take the weekly fee and multiply by 4.33 weeks in 
the month and then the annual fee is just the monthly fee 
times 12 months. Then we put that yearly fee in below 
blank (solid waste). 
The same method for Cardboard  and the roll off hauls are 
60 per year. 

Please provide your per tip cost as the RFP requires. 

 There is no blank to put on-call dumps for trash and 
cardboard. Do you want us to add to that form? 

No 

 Please confirm that the three types of service will be 
awarded to one contractor. 

Yes 

 Will a separate spreadsheet with all individual services 
have to be provided for monthly  billing? 

Yes 

 Please confirm all containers will be provided by contractor. Yes 

Terms & Conditions 
Pg. 14, #37 

Page 14, number 37- E-Verify- do  we have to provide an 
annual list with e-verified employees along with our annual 
Lunsford Act certification? 

Annual list of Lunsford Act employees required. 

 


